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1. Evldanca @34

The Supreme Court Judicially knows
that ‘the purpose of the Fair Labor Btand-
ards Act 1s to exclude from interstate com-
merce goods produced for the commerce and
to prevent thelr production for interstate
commerce under conditlons detrimental to
the malntenance of the minimum standards
of living necessary for health and general
well-being, and to prevent the use of inter-
state commerce as the means of competition
in the distribution of goods so produced and
a3 the meaps of spreading and perpetuating
such substandard labor conditions among the
workers: of the several states. Fair Labor
Standards Act of 1938, §§ 2(a), B(b), 20 U.8.
C.A. §§ 202(a), 203(b). -

2, Courts &=385(115)

On direct appeal to the Supreme Court
from a district court Judgment, sustaming
a demurrer to an indic_tment charging viola-
tions of the Falr Labor Standards Act and
quashing the Indictment, the jurisdiction of
the Supreme Court was limited under stat-
ute to a review of the determination of the
district court so far only as it was based on
the validity or comstruction of the act, and
hence the Supreme Court would aceept the
district court's Interpretation o¢f the indict-
ment and conflne Its decision to the valid-
ity and construction of the act. 18 U.S.C.A.
$ 682; Jud.Code, § 238, as amended, 28 U.8.

CA. § 345; Fair Labor Standards Act of

1938, § 15@a) (1, 2, 5), 20 U.S.CA. § 215(2) 1,
2, 5).

3. Commeice €186, 40(1), 55
Though manufacture is not itself “inter-
state commerce”, the shipment of manufac-
tured poods Iinterstate is interstate com-
merce and the prohibition of such shipment
by Congress is a regulation of the commerce,
U.8.C.A.Const. art. 1, § 8, ¢l. 3.
See Words and Phrases, Permanent
¥dition, for all other definitions of
“Interstate Commerce”. ' '
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4, Commerce €5, 48, 55

The power of Congress to “regulate com-
merce” 1 the power to prescribe the rule by
which commerce is to be governed, and it ex-
tends not only to those regulations which
ald, foster and protect the commerce, but
embraces those which - prohibit it. U.S.CA,
Const art. 1, § 8, cl. 3.

See Words and Phrases, Permanent
Edition, for all other definitions of
“Regulate Commerce”,

5. Commerce =5 ‘

The power of Congress over interstate
commerce is complete in itself, may be exer-
clged to its utmost extent, and acknowledges
no limitations other than are prescribed by
the constitution, and that power can neither
be enlarged nor diminished by the exercise
or nonexercise of state power, U.B.CA.
Const. art. 1, § 8, cl. 3.

6. Commerco €255
States &4

Congress following -its own conception
of public policy concerning the restrictions
which may appropriately be imposed on in-
terstate commerce 1s free to exclude from
the commerce articles whose use in the states
for which they are destined 1t may conceive
to be Injurious to the public health, morals
or welfare even though the state has not
sought tu vegulate their use, and such regu-
lation is not a forbidden invasion of state
power merely because elther its motive or its
consequence 1§ to restrict the use of articles
of commerce within the states of destina-
tion and is not prohibited@ unless by other
constitutional provisions. U.8.C.A.Const. art.

1,48 c. 3

7. Commerce @'—'35

It is no objection to the assertlon by
Congress of the power to regulate interstate
commerce that its exercise I8 attended by
the same incidents which attend the exer-
clse of the police power of the states. TU.B.
C.A.Const. art. 1, § 8, cl. 3.

8. Commerce &35

The motive and purpose of the provi-
gion of the Fair Labor Standards Act pro
hibiting the shipment in iInterstate com-
merce of goods produced for Interstate com-
merce by employees whose wages and hours
of employment do not conforin to require
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ments of the act is to make effective the
congressional conception of “public policy™
that Interstate commerce should not be made
the instrument of eompetition which is in-
Jurious to the commerce and to the states
from and t¢ which the eommerce flows in the
distribution of goods produced under sub-
standard labor econditions. Fair ILabor
Standards Act of 1938, § 15(a) (1), 29 U.8.
C.A. § 215(a) (1); U.S.C.A.Const. art. 1, § 8,
cl. 3.

See Words and Phrases, Permanent
Edition, for all other decfinitions of
“Public Policy”.

9. Constitutional law €=70(3)

The motive and purpose of a regulation
of interstate commerce are matters for the
legislative judgment wpon the exercise of
which the constitution places po restriction
and over which the courts are given no con-
trol. U.8.C.A.Const. art. 1, § 8, ¢l. 3,
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10. Constitutlonal Jaw &=70(1)

The judicial department eannot prescribe
to the legislative department of the govern-
ment limitations upon the exercise of its ac-
knowledged power.

il, Commerce €48

Whatever their motive and purpose, reg-
ulations of commerce which do not infringe
some constitutional prohibition are within
the plenary power conferred on Congress by
the commerce clause., U.8.C.A.Const. art. 1,
§8 c.3

§2. Commerce €255

The provision of the Fair Labor Stand-
ards Act prohibiting the shipment in inter-
state commerce of goods produced for inter-
state commerce by employees whose wagesg
and hours of employment do not conform to
the requirements of the act is within the
constitutional authority of Congress. Fair
Labor Standards Act of 1938, § 15(a) (1), 29
USCA. § 216(a) (1); U.B.C.AConst. art.
1, § 8 cl. 3

13. Commeree €=33(1), 55

The power of Congress under the com-
merce clause Is plenary to exclude any arti-
cle from interstate commerce subject only
to the specific prohibitions of the constitu-
tion. U.B.C.AConst. arf. 1, § 8, ¢l 3

{4, Commerce &=5, 13 ‘
The authority of the federal government
over interstate commerce does not differ in
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extent or character from that retained hy
the states over intrastate commerce. U.S.
C.AConst. art. 1, § §, cl. 3.

I5. Commerce €=16, 40(1)

The employees of a manufacturer en-
gaged in the business of acquiring raw ma-
terials which he manufactures into finished
lumber with the intent, when manufactured,
to ship it in interstate commerce to cus-
tomers outside the state and engaged in ac-
tually shipping a large part of the lumher
80 produced in inferstaic commerce are en-
gaged in the “production of goods for com-
merce” within the wage and hour reéquire-
ments of the Fair Labor Standards Act.
Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, § 6, 7,
15(a) (2), 20 U.B.C.A. §§ 208, 207, 215(a) (2);
U.8.C.A.Const. art. 1, § 8, cl. 8,

See Words and Phrases, Permanent

BEdition, for all other definitions of
“Production of Goods tor Commerte”,

16. Commerce €=55

The obvious purpose of the Fair Labor
Standards Act, which prohibits the shipment
in interstate commerce <f goods produced
for interstate commerce by employees whose
wages and hours do not conform to the re-
quirements of the act, was not only to pre-
vent the interstate trapsportation of the pro-
scribed product, but to stop the initlal step
toward transportation, production with the
purpose of so transporting it. Fair Labor
Standards Act of 1038, §§ €. 7, 15(a) (2), 29
U.S.C.A. §§ 206, 207, 215(a} (2); U.B.CA.
Const, art. 1, % 8, cl. 3.

17. Commarce €=16, 40(1)

The recognized need of drafting a work-
able statute and the well known circum-
stances In which it was to be applied are per-
suasive of the conclusion that the “produc-
tion of goods for commerce” intended in the
section of the Fair Labor Standards Act
making the wage and hour requirements of:
the act applicable to employees engaged in
the production of goods for interstate com-
merce Includes at least production of goods
which, at the time of production, the employ-
er, according to the normal course of his
business, intends or expects to move in in-
terstate commerce although, through the exi-
gencies of the business, all of the goods may:
not thereafter acinally enter interstate com-
merce, Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938,
§8 6, 7, 15(a) (2), 29 U.8.C.A. §§ 206, 207, 213
(a) {2); U.S.CAConst art. 1, § 8, cl, 3.



61 8.Ct.

18. Commerce €3 E )

The power of Congress over interstate
commerce ls not confined to the regulation
of commerce among the states, but it extends
to those activitles intrastate which so affect
interstate commerce or the exercise of the
power of Congress over 1t as to make regula-
tion of them. appropriate meansto:the at-
tainment of the exercise of the granted pow-
er. U.8.C.A.Const. art. 1, § 8, cl. 3.

19, Commerce €35, 10 _

In absence of congressional legislation
on the subject, state laws which are not reg-
ulations of interstate commerce itself or its
instrumentalities are not ‘forbidden eveh
though they affect interstate commerce, but
it does not follow that Congress may not by
appropriate legislation regulate intrastate
activities where they have a sgubstantial ef-
fect on interstate commerce, U.S.C.A.Const.
art. 1, 8 8, ¢t 3.

20.  Constitutional law &=47

In passing -on the validity of legislation
wherein - Congress \itself sayg that a partie-
ular activity affects interstate commerce, the
only fonction of courts is to determine
whether the particular activity regulated or
prohibited is within the reach of the federal
power, U.B.C.A.Const. art. 1, § §, cl. 3.

21, Commerce €16

The provisions of the Fair Labor Stand-
ards Act reguiring’ employers to conform to
the wage and hour requirements with respect
to employees engaged in’' the production of
goods for interstate commerce are a valid ex-
ercise of constitutional authority, since Con-
gress having by the aet adopted the policy
of excluding - from Interstate commerce all
goods produced for the commerce which do
not conform to the specified Iabor standards,
ecould choose the means reasonably adapted
to the attainment of the permitted end, even
though they involved control of intrastate
activities.  Fair Labor Standards Act of
1938, §8 6, 7, 15(a) (1, 2), 20 U.8.C.A. §§ 206,
207, 215(a) (1, 2); U.S.C.A.Const. art. 1, § §
cl 3. : C

22, Commerce &=55

- The provision of the Fair Labhor Stand-
ards Act making it unlawful to violate the
wage and hour requirements with respect to
employees engaged in the production of goods
for interstate commerce is within the reach
of the commerce power independently of the
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provision which makes unlawful the ship-
ment in intersfate commerce of any goods
in the production of which any employee was
employed in violation of the wage and hour
requirements, since the act is directed at the
suppression in interstate commerce of & kind
of competition which it has in effect -con-
demned as “unfalf’competition”. Fair La-
bor Standards Act of 1938, §8 6, 7, 15(a) (1, 2),
20 U.8.C.A. & 206, 207, 215(a) (1,2); U.S.C.A.
Const. art. 1, § 8, cL 3, :
See Words and Phrases, Permanent
Edition, for all other definitions of
“Unfair Competition”.

23. States €=4 _ ' _

The provisions of the Fair Labor Stand-
ards Act reqguiring employers to conform to
the wage and hour reguirements with respect
to all empleyees engaged in the production
of goods for interstate commerce do not vio-
late the Tenth Amendment. Fair Labor
Standards Act of 1038, §3 6, 7, 15(a) (2), 29 U.
8.C.A, §§ 208, 207, 215(a) (2); U.B.C.A.Const.
art. 1, § § ¢l. 3; Amend. 10,

24, States &4 .

The Tenth Amendment is merely decla-
ratory of the relationship between the na-
tional and state governments as it was estab-
lished by the constitution before the amend-
ment, and its purpose was to allay fears
that the new national goverument might seek
to exercise powers not granted and that the
states might not be able to exercise fully
their reserved powers. U.8.C.A.Const.
Amenpd, 10, :

25, States ¢4 o

The Tenth Amendment does not deprive
the pational government of authority to re-
sort to all means for the exercise of a grant-
ed power which are appropriate and plainly
adapted to the permitted end. U.S.C.A.
Const. Amend. 10.

26, Commerce €257 .

The provisions of the Fair Laber Stand-
ards Act making it unlawful for an employ-
er subject to the act to violate the section
which requires him to keep such records of

. the persons employed by him and of their

wages and hours of employment as the ad-
ministrator shall prescribe by regulation or
order are valid even to the extent of re-
quiring records of intrastate transactlons as
an appropriate means to the legitimate end
of enforcing the wage and hour provisions.



454

Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, §8 6, 7,
11(c), 15(a) (5), 29 U.S.C.A. 8 206, 207, 211
(c), 215(a) (5); U.8.C.A.Const. art. 1, § 8,
cl. 3 '

27. Constitutional law €2275(2)

Master and servant €=69

The wage and hour provisions of the
Fair Labor Standards Act compelling the
payment of a minimum standard wage with
a priesceribed increased wage for overtime do
not deny “due process of law™ in violation
of the Fifth Amendment, nor are they ob-
jectionable because applied alike to both men
and women. Fair Labor Standards Act of
1938, §§ 6, 7, 20 U.S.C.A. §§ 208, 207; U.S.
CAConst, art. 1, § 8, cl. 3; Amend. 5.

See Words ond Phrases, Permanent
Edition, for all other definitions of
“Due Process of Law”,

28. Commerce €43

Constitutional law &=275(2)

The fixing of a minimnm wage s within
the legislative power of Congress under the
commerce c¢lause, and- the bare fact of its
exerclise is not a denial of “@ue process of
law” under the Fifth Amendment or under
the Fourteenth Amendment. U.8.C.A.Const.
art. 1, § 8, cl. 3; Amends. 5, 14,

29, Criminal law &=I13

The Fair Labor Standards Act which
warns anyone who employs persons without
conforming to the prescribed wage and hour
conditions to work on goods which he ships
or expects to ship across state lines that he
may be subject to the criminal penalties of
the sct is sufficiently definite te meot eon-
stitutional demands. Fair Labor Standards
Act of 1938, §8 6, 7, 15, 16(a), 29 U.S.C.A, §
206, 207, 215, 216(a); U.8.C.A.Const., art, 1,
§8 cl. 3; Amend. 5. .

Appeal from the District Court of the
United States for the Southern District of
Georgia.

Fred W. Darby was indicted for alleged
violations of section 15(a) (1,2,5) of the
Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, 29 U.
S.CA. § 215(a) (1,2,5), and from a judg-
ment sustaining a demurrer to the indict-
ment and quashing the indictment, 32 F.
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N

Supp. 734, the United States of America
appeals.

Reversed.

102

Messrs. Robert H. Jackson, Atty. Gen.,
and Francis Biddle, Sol. Gen., for appel-
lant.

106

Mr. Archibald B. Lovett, of Savannah,
Ga., for appeilce.

108

Mr. Justice STONE delivered the opin-
ion of the Court.

The two principal questions raised by
the record in this case are, first, whether
Congress has constitutional power to pro-
hibit the shipment in interstate commerce
of lumber manufactured by employees
whose wages are less than a prescribed
minimum or whose weekly hours of labor
at that wage are greater than a prescribed
maximum, and, second, whether it has pow-
er to prohibit the employment of workmen
in the production of goods “for interstate
commerce” at other than prescribed wages
and hours. A subsidiary question is wheth-
er in connection with such prohibitions
Congress can reguire the employer subject
to them to keep records showing the hours
worked each day and week by each of his
employees including those engaged “in the
production and manufacture of goods to
wit, lumber, for ‘interstate commerce.”

Appellee’ demurred to an indictment
found in the district court for southern
Georgia charging him with violation of §
15¢a) (1) (2) and (5) of the Fair Labor
Standards Act of 1938, 52 Stat. 1060, 29
U.S.C. § 201, et seq., 29 US.CA. § 201 et
seq. The district court sustained the de-
murrer and quashed the indictment and the
case comes here on direct appeal under §
238 of the Judicial Code as amended, 28

109
U.S.C. § 345, 28 U.S.C.A. § 345, and § 682,
Title 18 U.8.C,, 34 Stat, 1246, 18 U.S.C.A.
§ 682, which authorizes an appeal to this
Court when the judgment sustaining the
demurrer “is based upon the invalidity, or
construction of the statute upon which the
indictment is founded”.

[1] The Fair Labor Standards Act set
up a comprehensive legislative scheme for
preventing the shipment in interstate com-
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merce of certain products and commod:’ues
produced in the United States under labor
conditions as respects wages and hours
which fail to coniform to standards set up
by the Act. Its purpose, as we judicially
know from the declaration of policy in §
2(a) of the Act,! and the reports of Con-
gressional committees proposing the legis-
lation, S.Rept. No. 884, 75th Cong. l1st
Sess.; H.Rept. No. 1452, 75th Cong. Ist
Sess.; H.Rept. No. 2182, 75th Cong. 3d
Sess., Conference Report, H.Rept. No. 2738,
75th Cong. 3d Sess, is to exclude from in-
terstate commerce goods produced for the
commerce and to prevent their production
for interstate commerce, under conditions
detrimental to the maintenance of the mini-
mum standards of living necessary for
health and general well-being; and to pre-
vent the use of interstate
o ,

. - commerce as the
means of competition in the distribution of
goods so produced, and as the means of
spreading and perpetuating such substand-
ard labor conditions among the workers of
the several states. The Act also sets up an
administrative procedure ‘whereby ~those
standards may from time to time be modi-
fied generally as to industries subject to
the Act or within an industry in accord-
ance with specified standards, by an ad-
ministrator acting in collaboration with
“Industry Committees” appointed by him.

Section 15 of the statute prohibits cer-
tain specified acts and § 16(a) punishes
willful violation of it by & fine of not more
than $10,000 and punishes each conviction
after the first by imprisonment of not more
than six months or by the specified fine or
both.” Section 15(a) (1) makes’ unfawful
the shipment in interstate commerce of any
goods “in the production of which any em-
ployee was employed in vielation of section
6[206] or section 7{207]"”, which provide,

UNITED smms v.DARBY R

among other thmgs, that dunng the first
year of operation of the Act a minimum
wage of 25 ¢ents per hour shall be paid to
employees “engaged in [interstate] com-
merce‘or in the production of goods for
[interstate] commerce,” § 6, and that the
maximum ‘hours of employment for em-
ployees “engaged in commerce or in the
production of goods for commerce” with-
out increased compensation for overtime,
shall be forty-four hours a week, §7.

Section 15(a) (2) makes it unlawful to
violate the prov1sxons ‘of 8§ 6 and 7 includ-
ing the minimum wage and maximum
hour requirements just mentioned for em-
ployees engaged in production of goods
for commerce. Section 15(a) (5) makes
it unlawfu! for an employer subject to the
Act to violate § 11(c) which requires him
to keep such records of the persons .em-
ployed by him and of their wages and
hours of employment as the administrator
shall prescribe by regulation or order,

1131

T he mdmtment charges . that appellec
is engaged, in the state of Georgia, in

the business of acquiring raw materials, -
which he manufactures into finished lum-
ber with the intent, when manufactured, to
ghip it in interstate commerce to customers
outside the state, and that he does in fact
so ship a large part of the lumber so: pro-
duced. There are numerous counts charg-
ing appellee with the shipment in inter-
state commerce  from Georgia to points
outside the state of lumber in the produc-
tion of which, for interstate commerce, ap-
pellee has employed workmen at less than
the prescribed minimum wage or more than
the prescribed maximum hours without
payment to them of any wage for over-
time. Other counts charge the employ-
ment by appellee of workmen in the pro-

©1%Sec, 2 [$ 202].  (a) The Congress
hereby finds that the existence, in indus-
trics - engaged in commerce or in the ~
production of goods for commerce, of
labor conditions detrimental  to - the
maintenance of the minimum standard of
living necessary for health, efficiency, and
general well-being of workers (1) causes
commerce and the channels and instru-
mentalities of commerce to be used to
gpread and perpetuate guch labor con-
ditions among the workers of the several
States; (2) burdens commerce and the

free flow of goods in commerce; (3)
constitutes an unfair method of competi-
tion in commerce; (4) leads to labor
digputes burdening and obstruciing com-
merce and the free flow of goods in com-
merce; and (5) interferes with the or-
derly and feir marketing of goods in com-
merce.” .

Scetion 3{(b) defines “commerce” ag
“trade, commerce, transportation, trans-
mission, or communication among the
gevergl States or from any State to any
place outside thereof.”
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duction of lumber for interstate commerce
at wages of less than 25 cents an hour or
for more than the maximum hours per
week without payment to them of the pre-
scribed overtime wage. Still another count
charges appellee with failure to keep rec-
ords showing the hours worked each day
a2 week by each of his employees as re-
quired by § 11(c) and the regulation of the
administrator, Title 29, Ch. 5, Code of Fed-
eral Regulations, Part 516, and also that
appellee unlawfully failed to keep such
records of employees engaged “in the pro-
duction and manufacture of goods, to-wit
lumber, for interstate commerce”.

The demurrer, so far as now relevant to
the appeal, challenged the validity of the
Fair Labor Standards Act under the Com-
merce Clause, Art. 1, § 8 cl 3, and the
Fifth and Tenth Amendments. The dis-
trict court quashed the indictment in its
entirety upon the broad grounds that the
Act, which it interpreted as a regulation of
manufacture within the states, is unconsti-
tutional, It declared that manufacture is
not interstate commerce and that the regula-
tion by the Fair Labor Standards Act of
wages and hours of employment of those
engaged in the manufacture

112

_ of goods which
it is intended at the time of production
“may or will be” after production “sold
in interstate commerce in part or in whole”
is not within the congressional power to
regulate interstate commerce.

The effect of the court’s decision and
judgment are thus to deny the power of
Congress to prohibit shipment in interstate
commerce of lumber produced for interstate
commerce under the proscribed substandard
labor conditions of wages and hours, its
power to penalize the employer for his
failure to conform to the wage and hour

provisions in the case of employees en-)

gaged in the production of lumber which
he intends thereafter to ship in interstate
commerce in part or in whole according to
the normal course of his business and its
power to compel him to keep records of
hours of employment as required by the
statute and the regulations of the admin-
istrator,

[2] The case comes here on assign-
ments by the Government that the district
court erred insofar as it held that Congress

was without constitutional power to pena-
lize the acts set forth in the indictment, and
appellees seek to sustain the decision below
on the grounds that the prohibition by Con-
gress of those Acts is unauthorized by the
commerce clause and is prohibited by the
Fifth Amendment. The appeals statute
limits our jurisdiction on this appeal to a
review of the determination of the district
court so far only as it is based on the. valid-
ity or construction of the statute. United
States v. Borden Co., 308 U.S. 188, 193,
195, 60 S.Ct. 182, 185, 186, 84 L.Ed. 181,
and cases cited. Hence we accept the dis-
trict court’s interpretation of the indictment
and confine our decision to the validity and
construction of the statute,

The prohibition of shipment of the pro-
scribed goods in intersiate commerce, Sec-
tion 15 (a) (1) prohibits, and the indict-
ment charges, the shipment in interstate
commerce, of goods produced for interstate
commerce by employees whose wages and

hours of employment do not

113
conform to

the requirements of the Act. Since this
section is not violated unless the commodity
shipped has been produced under labor con-
ditions prohibited by § 6 and § 7, the only
question arising under the commerce clause
with respect to such shipments is whether
Congress has the constitutional power to
prohibit them.

[3,4] While manufacture is not of it-
self interstate commerce the shipment of
manufactured goods interstate is such com-
merce and the prohibition of such ship-
ment by Congress is indubitably a regula-
tion of the commerce. The power to regu-
late commerce is the power “to prescribe the
rule by which commerce is to be governed”.
Gibbons v. Ogden, 9 Wheat. 1, 196, 6 L.Ed,
23. It extends not only to those regulations
which aid, foster and protect the commerce,
but embraces those which prohibit it. Reid
v. Colorado, 187 U.S, 137, 23 S.Ct. 92, 47
L.Ed. 108; Lottery Case (Champion v.
Ames), 188 U.S. 321, 23 S.Ct, 321, 47 L Ed,
492; United States v. Delaware & Hud-
son Co., 213 U.S. 366, 29 S.Ct, 527, 53 L.
Ed. 836; Hoke v. United States, 227 U.S.
308, 33 S.Ct, 281, 57 L.Ed. 523, 43 L.R.A.,,
N.S,, 906, Ann.Cas.1913E, 905; Clark Dis-
tilling Co. v. Western Maryland R, Cu.,
242 U.8. 311, 37 S.Ct. 180, 61 LEd. 326,
LR.A1917B, 1218, Ann.Cas.1917B, 845;
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United States v, Hill, 248-U.5.:420, 39 S
Ct 143, 63 L.Ed. 337; McCormick & Co.
v. Brown, 286 U.S. 131, 52 S.Ct. 522, 76
L.Ed. 1017; 87 ALR. 448, Tt is conceded
that the power of Congress to prehibit
transportation in interstate commerce in-
cludes noxious articles, Lottery Case, sup-
ra; Hipolite Egg Co. v. United States, 220
U.S. 45, 31 S.Ct. 364, 55 LEd. 364; cf.
Hoke v. United States, supra; stolen arti-
tles,- Brooks v. United States, 267 U.S.
432, 45 S.Ct. 345, 69 L.Ed. 699, 37 A.LR.
1407 kidnapped persons, Gooch v. United
States, 297 U.S. 124, 56 S.Ct. 395, 80 L.Ed.
522, and articles such as intoxicating liquor
or. convict made goods, traffic in which is
forbidden or restricted by the laws of the
state of destination. Kentucky Whip &
Collar Co, v. Illinois Central R. Co., 299
U.S. 334,57 8.Ct. 277, 81 L.Ed. 270. :

But it is said that the present prohibition
falls within the scope of none of these
categories; that while the prohibition is
nominally a. regulatlon of the commerce its
motive or purpose is regulatwn of wages
and hours of persons engaged in manufac-
ture, the control of which has been re-
served to the states and upon which
Georgia _
A 114 .

,.and some of the states of destina-
tion have placed no restriction; that the
effect of the present statute is mot to ex-
clude the prescnbed articles from interstate
commerce in aid of state regulation as in
Kentucky 'Whip & Collar Co. v. Illinois
Central R. Co., supra, but instead, under
the guise of a regulation of interstate com-
merce, it undertakes to regulate wages and
hours within the state contrary to the poli-
cy of the state which has elected to leave
them unregulated. =~

[5-71 The power of Congress over in-
terstate commerce “is complete in itself,
may be exercised to its utmost extent, and
acknowledges no limitations, other, than are
prescribed by the constitution.” Gibbons v,
Ogden, supra, & Wheat. 196, 6 L.Ed. 23.
That power can neither be enlarged nor
diminished by the exercise or non-exercise
of state power. - Kentucky Whip & Collar
Co. v. Illinois Central R, Co,, supra, Con-
gress, following its own conceptlon of public
policy concerning the restrictions which may
appropriately be imposed on interstate com-
merce, is free to exclude from the commerce
articles whose use in the 'states for which
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th_ey are destined it may conceive to be inju-
rious to the public health, morals or welfare,
even though the state has not sought to regu-
late their use. Reid .v.- Colorado, supra;
Lottery Case, supra; Hipolite Egg Co. v.
United States, supra; Hoke v. United
States, supra. _— -

Such regulation is not a forbidden in-
vasion of state power merely because either
its motive or its consequence is to restrict
the use of articles of commerce within the
states of destination and is not prohibited
unless by other Constitutional provisions.
It is no objection to the assertion of the
power {0 regulate interstate commerce that
its exercise is attended by the same inci-
dents which attend the exercise of the
police power of the states. : Seven Cases
v. United States, 239 1.S. 510, 514, 36
S.Ct. 190, 191, 60 L.Ed. 411; Hamilton v,
Kentucky Distilleries & Warehouse Co.,
251 15.8.. 146, 156, 40 S.Ct. 106, 108, 64
L.Ed. 194; United States v. Carolene
Products Co., 304 U.S.
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' - 144, 147, 58 S.Ct.
778, 780 82 LEd 1234; Umtcd States v.
Appalachian Electric Powcr Co., 311 U.S.
377, 61 S.Ct. 291, 85 L.Ed, 243, dec:ded De-
cember 16, 1940

[8-12] The motive and purpose of the
present regulation are plainly to make efiec-
tive the Congressienal conception of public
policy that interstate commerce should not
be made the instrument of competition in
the distribution of goods produced under
substandard labor conditions, which compe-
tition is injurious to the commerce and to
the states from and to which the commerce
flows. The motive and purpose of a
regulation of interstate commerce are mat-
ters for the legislative judgment upon the
exercise of which the Constitution places
no restriction and. over which the courts
are given no control. McCray v. United
States, 195 U.5.:27, 24 5.Ct. 769, 49 L.Ed.
78, 1 Ann.Cas. 561; Sonzinsky v. United
States, 300 U.S. 506, 513, 57 S.Ct. 554, 555,
81 L.Ed. 772, and cases cited. “The ju-
dicial cannot prescribe to the legislative
departments of the government limitations
upon the exercise of its acknowledged
power”. Veazie Bank v. - Fenno, 8 Wall
533, 548, 19 LEd. 482. Whatever their
motive and purpose, regulations of com-
merce which do not infringe some consti-
tutional prohibition -are within the plenary
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power conferred on Congress by the Com-
merce Clause, Subject only to that limita-
tion, presently to be considered, we con-
clude that the prohibition of the shipment
interstate of goods produced under the
forbidden substandard labor conditions is
within the constitutional authority of Con-
gress,

[13] In the more than a century which
has elapsed since the decision of Gibbons
v. Ogden, these principles of constitution-
al interpretation have been so long and re-
peatedly recognized by this Court as ap-
plicable to the Commerce Clause, that there
would be little occasion for repeating them
now were it not for the decision of this
Court twenty-two years ago in Hammer v.
Dagenhart, 247 1.8, 251, 38 S.Ct. 529, 62
L.Ed. 1101, 3 ALR. 649, Ann.Cas.1918E,
724. In that case it was held by a bare
majority of the Court over the powerful
and now classic dissent of Mr. Justice
Holmes setting forth the fundamental is-
sues involved,

_ 116

- that Congress was without
power to exclude the products of child
labor from interstate commerce. The rea-
soning and conclusion of the Court’s opin-
ion there cannot be reconciled with the
conclusion which we have reached, that the
power of Congress under the Commerce
Clause is plenary to exclude any article
from interstate commerce subject only to
the specific prohibitions of the Constitu-
tion.

[14] Hammer v. Dagenhart has not
been followed. The distinction on which
the decision was rested that Congressional
power to prohibit interstate commerce is
limited to articles which in themselves have
some harmful or deleterious property—a
distinction which was novel when made and
unsupported by any provision of the Con-
stitution—has long since been abandoned.
Brooks v. United States, supra; Kentucky
Whip & Coeilar Co. v. Hiinois Central R,
Co., supra; Electric Bond & Share Co. v.
Securities & FExchange Commission, 303
U.5. 419, 58 S.Ct. 678, 82 I.Ed. 936, 115
ALR. 105; Mulford v. Smith, 307 U.S.,
38, 59 S.Ct. 648, 83 L.Ed 1092, The
thesis of the opinion that the motive of the
prohibition or its effect to control in some
nicnsure the use or production within the
states of the article thus excluded from
the commerce can operate to deprive the
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regulation of its constitutional authority
has long since ceased to have force. Reid
v. Colorado, supra; Lottery Case, supra;
Hipolite Egg Co. v. United States, supra;
Seven Cases v. United States, supra, 239
U.S. 514, 36 S.Ct 191, 60 LEd. 411;
Hamilton v. Kentucky Distilleries & Ware-
house Co., supra, 251 U.S. 156, 40 S.Ct.
108, 64 L.Ed. 194; United States v. Caro-
lene Products Co., supra, 304 U.S. 147, 58
S.Ct. 780, 82 L.Ed. 1234, And finally we
have declared “The authority of the Fed-
eral Government over interstate commerce
does not differ in extent or character from
that retained by the states over intrastate
commerce”. United States v. Rock Royal
Co-Operative, Inc,, 307 U.S, 533, 569, 59 S.
Ct. 993, 1011, 83 L.Ed. 1446,

The conclusion is inescapable that Ham-
mer v, Dagenhart, was a departure from
the principles which have prevailed in the
interpretation of the commerce clause both
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before and since the decision and that such
vitality, as a precedent, as it then had has
long since been exhausted, It should be
and now is overruled.

Validity of the wage ond hour require-
ments,  Section 15(a)(2) and §§ 6 and 7
require employers to conform to the wage
and hour provisions with respect to all
employees engaged in the production of
goods for interstate commerce. As ap-
pellee’s employees are not alleged to be
“engaged in interstate commerce” the valid-
ity of the prohibition turns on the ques-
tion whether the employment, under other
than the prescribed labor standards, of
employees engaged in the production of
goods for interstate commerce is so related
to the commerce and so affects it as to be
within the reach of the power of Congress
to regulate it

To answer this question we must at the
outset determine whether the particular acts
charged in the counts which are laid under
§ 15(x) (2) as they were construed below,
constitite “production for commerce” with-
in the meaning of the statute. As the Gov-
ernment secks to apply the statute in the
indictment, and as the court below construed
the phrase “produced for interstate com-
merce”, it embraces at least the case where
an employer engaged, as are appellees, in the
manufacture and shipment of goods in fill-
ing orders of extrastate customers, manu-
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factures his product with the jintent or ex-
pectation that according o, the ‘normal
course of his business all or séme part of it
will be selected for shipment to those cus-
tomers. .

[15,16] Without attempting to define the
precise limits ‘of the phrase, we think the
acts alleged in the indictment are within the
sweep-of the statute. The obvious purpose
of the Act was not only to prevent the inter-
state transportation of the proscribed prod-
uct, but to stop the initial stepitoward trans-
portation, production with the purpose of so
transporting it. Congress was not unaware
that .
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most manufacturing businesses ship-
ping their product in interstate commerce
make it in their shops without reference to
its ultimate destination and then after manu-
facture select some of it for shipment inter-
state and some intrastate according to the
daily demands of their business, and that it
would be practically impossible, without dis-
rupting manufacturing businesses, to re-
strict the prohibited kind of production to
the particular pieces of lumber, cloth, fur-
niture or the like which later move in inter-
state rather than intrastate commerce. - Cf.
United States v. New York Central R. Co.,
272 U.S, 457, 464, 47 S.Ct. 130, 132 71 L.
Ed. 350. .-

: {171 The recognized need of drafting a
workable statute and the well known cir-
cumstances in which it was to be applied are
persuasive of the conclusion, which the leg-
islative history supports, S.Rept.No, 884
75th Cong. 1st Sess., pp. 7 and 8; H.Rept.
.No. 2738, 75th Cong. 3d Sess., p. 17, that the

“production for commerce” intended in--

cludes at least production of goods, which,
at the time of production, the employer, ac-
cording to the normal course of his busi-
ness, intends or expects to move it inter-
state commerce although, through the exi-
gencies of the business, all of the goods may
not thereafter ac.tually entet interstate com-
merce.?

[18] ‘There remains the question wheth-
er such restriction on 'the production of
goods for commerce is a permissible exer-
cisc of the commerce power. The power of
Congress over interstate commerce is not

UNITED STATES v. DARBY
SRR 812 U.S.
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confined to the regulation of commerce
among the states. It éxtends to those ac-
tivities intrastate which so affect intersiate
commerce or the exercise of the power of
Congress over it as to make regulation of
them appropriate means to the attainment
of a legitimate end, the exercise of the
granted power of Congress to regulate inter-

state commerce. See McCulloch
119
' v. Mary-

land, 4 Wheat. 316, 421, 4 L.Ed. 579. Ci.
United States v. Ferger, 250 U.5. 199, 39 5.
Ct. 445, 63 L.Ed. 936. :

[19] While this Court has manytimes
found state regulation of interstate com-
merce, when uniformity of its regulation is
of national concern, to be incompatible with
the Commerce Clause even though Congress
has not legislated on the subject, the Court
has never implied such restraint on state
control over matters intrastate not deemed
to be regulations of interstate commerce or
its instrumentalities even though they af-
fect the commerce. Minnesota Rate Cases,
230 U.S. 352, 398, 410 et seq,, 33 S.Ct. 729,
739,744, 57 L.Ed. 1511, 48 L. R.AN.S., 1151,
Ann.Cas 19164, 18, and cases cited. In the
ahsence of Congressional legislation on the
subject state laws which are not regulations
of the commerce itself or its instrumentali-
ties are not forbidden even though they af-
fect interstate commerce. Kidd v. Pearson,
1281U.S. 1,9 S.Ct. 6, 32 L.Ed. 346; Baconv.
linois, 227 U.S. 504, 33 S.Ct. 299, 57 L.Ed.
615; Heisler v. Thomas Colliery Co., 260
U.S. 245, 43 S.Ct. B3, 67 L.Ed. 237; Ofiver
Iron Mmmg Co.v. Lord, 262 .S, 177 43 S,
Ct. 526, 67 L.Ed. 929,

But’it does not follow that Congress may
not by appropriate legislation regulate in-
trastate activities where they have a substan-
tial effect on interstate commerce. See
Santa Cruz Fruit Packing Co. v. National
Labor Relations Board, 303 U.S. 453, 466, 58
S.Ct. 656, 660, 82 L.Ed. 9534, A recent exam-
ple is the National Labor Relations Act, 29
U.S.C.A. § 1591 et seq., for the regulation of
employer and employee relations in indus-
tries in which .strikes, induced by unfair
labor practices named in the Act, tend to djs-
turb or obstruct interstate commerce. See
National Labor Relations Board v. Jones &
Laughlin Steel Corp., 30t U.S. 1, 38, 40, 57
S.Ct. 615, 625,81 L.Ed. 893, 108 A.L.R. 1352;

" ROL Admxmstrators Oplmon Interpretative Bulletin No. 5, 1940 Wage and Hour

Manual, p. 131 et geq.
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National Labor Relations Board v. Fain-
blatt, 306 U.S. 601, 604, 59 S.Ct. 668, 670, 83
L.Ed. 1014, and cases cited. But long before
the adoptiorn of the National Labor Rela-
tions Act, this Court had many times held
that the power of Congress to regulate inter-
state commerce extends to the regulation
through legislative action of activities intra-

state
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which have a substantial effect on the
commerce or the exercise of the Congres-
sional power over it.3

[20] In such legislation Congress has
sometimes left it to the courts to deter-
mine whether the intrastate activities have
the prohibited effect on the commerce, as
in the Sherman Act, 15 U.S.CA. §§ 1-7,
15 note, It has sometimes left it to an
administrative board or agency to deter-
mine whether the activities sought to be
regulated or prohibited have such effect,
as in the case of the Interstate Commerce
Act, 49 U.S.C.A. § 1 et seq, and the Na-
tional Labor Relations Act or whether they
come within the statutory definition of the
prohibited Act as in the Federal Trade
Commission Act, 15 U.S.C.A. § 41 et seq.
And sometimes Congress itself has said
that a particular activity affects the com-
merce as it did in the present act, the Safe-
ty Appliance Act, 15 U.S.CA. § 1 et seq,
and the Railway Labor Act, 45 U.S.C.A. §
181 et seq. In passing on the validity of
legislation of the class last mentioned the
only function of courts is to determine
whether the particular activity regulated
or prohibited is within the reach
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of the fed-

eral power. See United States v. Ferger,
supra; Virginian R. Co, v. System Federa-
tion, 300 U.5. 515, 533, 57 S.Cr. 592, 602,
81 L.Ed. 789,

[21] Congress, having by the present
Act adopted the policy of excluding from
interstate commerce all goods produced
for the commerce which do not conform
to the specified labor standards, it may
choose the means reasonably adapted to
the attainment of the permitted end, even
though they involve control of intrastate
activities. Such legislation has often been
sustained with respect to powers, other
than the commerce power granted to the
national government, when the means
chosen, although not themselves within
the granted power, were nevertheless deem-
ed appropriate aids to the accomplishment
of some purpose within an admitted power
of the national government., See Ruppert,
Ine, v. Caffey, 251 U.S. 264, 40 S.Ct. 141,
64 L.Ed. 260; Everard’s Breweries v. Day,
265 U.S. 545, 560, 44 S5.Ct. 628, 631, 68
L.Ed. 1174; Westfall v. United States,
274 U.S. 256, 259, 47 5.Ct. 629, 71 L.Ed.
1036. As to state power under the Four-
teenth Amendment, compare Otis v, Park-
er, 187 U.S. 606, 609, 23 S.Ct. 168, 47 L.
Ed. 323; St. John v. New York, 201 U.S.
633, 26 S.Ct. 554, 50 L.Ed. 896, 5 Ann.Cas.
909; Purity Extract & Tonic Company
v. Lynch, 226 U.5. 192, 201, 202, 33 S.Ct.
44, 45, 46, 57 L.Ed. 184. A familiar like
exercise of power is the regulation of
intrastate transactions which are so com-
mingled with or related to interstate com-
merce that all must be regulated if the

31t may prohibit wholly intrastate ae-
tivities which, if permitted, would re-
gult in restraint of interstate commerce,
Coronado Coal Co. v. United Mine Work-
ers, 268 U.B. 295, 310, 45 8.Ct. 551, 556,
69 L.Ed. 963; Local 167 v. United
States, 201 U.8. 293, 207, 54 8.Ct. 396,
308, 78 L.Ed. 804, It may regulate the
activities of a local grain exchange shown
to have an injurious effect on interstute
commeree. Chicago Board of Trade v..
Olsen, 262 U.8. 1, 43 S.Ct. 470, 67 L.
Ed. 839, It may regulate intrastate
rates of interstate carriers where the
effect of the rates is to-burden interstate
commerce. Houston, E. &:;'W. Tezas R:
Co. v. United States, 234 U.S. 342, 34
8.Ct. 833, 58 I.Ed. 1341; Railroad Com-
mission of Wiseonsin v. "Chicago,. Bur-
lington & Quiney R. Co., 257 U.8, 583,

42 3.Ct. 232, 66 L.Ed. 371, 22 ALR.
1086; United States v. Lonisiana, 290
U.8. 70, 74, 54 B.Ct, 28, 31, 78 I.Ed. 181;
Fierida v. United States, 292 T.8. 1,
64 8.Ct. 603, 78 LE4. 1077. It may
compel the adoption of safety appliances
on rolling stock moving intrastate be-
cause of the relation to and effect of
such appliances upon interstate traffic
moving over the same railroad. South-
ern R. Co. v. United States, 222 TU.S,
20, 32 8.Ct. 2, 56 L.Ed. 72. It may pre-
scribe maximum hours for employees
engaged in intrastate activity conneeted
with the movement of any train, such as
train dispatchers and telegraphers. . Bal-
timore & Ohio R, Co. v. Interstate
Commerce Commission, 221 U8, 612,
619, 31 8.Ct. 621,-625, 55 L.Ed. 878,
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interstat¢ commerce is -to be: effectweiy
controlled.  Shreveport Case, 234 U.S.
342, 34 S.Cr. 833, 58 L.Ed. 1341; Wisconsin
Railroad Comm.’ v.. Chicago, B.‘ & Q. R
Co., 257 U.S. 563, 42 S.Ct. 232/ 66 L.Ed,

371, 22 ALXR. 1086; 'United States: v..

New York Central R. R. Co.,, supra, 272
- U.S, 464, 47 S.Ct. 132, 71 L.Ed. 350; : Cur-
. rin v. Wallace, 306 U.S. 1, 59 S.Ct.'379,
83 L.Ed. 441;

tion and preventive treatment of all cattle
in a disease infected area in order to pre-
vent shipment in interstate ¢ommerce of
- some of the cattle without the treatment.
Thornton v. United States, 271 U.S, 414,
46 S.Ct. 585, 70 L.Ed. 1013. = It may pro-
hibit the removal, at destination, of labels
required by the Pure Food & Drugs Act,
21 US.CA. § 1 et seq, to be affixed to
articles
' 122
) transported in interstdte commerce.
McDermott v. Wisconsin, 228 U.S. 115, 33
S.Ct. 431, 57 LEd 754, 47 LRA. NS

984, Ann.Cas.1915A, 39. And we have
recently held that Congress'in the exer-

cise of its power to require inspection and
‘grading of tobacco shipped in interstate
commerce may compel such inspection and
gradmg of all tobacco sold at local auc-

but not alt of the tobacco sold is shipped
in interstate commerce.
" lace, supra, 306 U.S. 11, 59 S.Ct. 385, 83

' LEd. 441, and see to the like effect the protection .of interstaté commerce by

United States v, Rock Royal Co-Op., supra,

307 U.S. 568, 59 5.Ct. 1010, 83L.Ed 1446,

note 37,

{22] We think also that § 15(a) (2),

- now under consideration, is sustainable in-
dependently -of §'15(a) (1), which pro-
hibits shipment or transportation of the
- proscribed -goods. "As we have said the
evils aimed at by the Act are the spread
"of substandard labor conditions through
the use of the facilities of interstate com-

merce for competition by the goods so pro--

- duced with those produced under the pre-
scribed or better labor conditions; and

the consequent.dislocation of the commerce -
- itself caused by the impairment or de- .

struction of local businesses by competition
‘made effective - through 'interstate com-
merce. The Act is thus directed at the
suppression of a method or kind of com-
~ petition in interstate commerce which it
“has -in effect condemned as “unfair”, as

UNITED STATE.E. v. DARBY

Mulford v. Smith, supra..
Similarly "Congress’ may require inspec-

merce,

333, 44 LRA,NS., 325;

Currin v. Wal-

461

“the Clayton Act, 38:Stat. 730, has con-

demned other “unfair methods of com-

-petition” made effective through interstate
- commerce.
"American Can Co., 278 U.S, 245, 49 S.Ct.

See Van Camp & Soms wv.
112,73 L.Ed. 311, 60 AL.R. 1060; Federal

‘Trade Comm.-¥v. R. F. Keppel & Bro,, 291

U.S, 304, 54 S.Ct. 423, 78 L.Ed. 814.

The Sherman Act and the National Labor
Relations Act are familiar examples of the
exertion of the commerce power to pro-
hibit or control activities wholly intrastate
because ‘of their effect on interstate com-
See as to the Sherman Act, North-
ern Securities Company v. United -Statés,
193 U.S. 197, 24 S.Ct. 436, 48 L.Ed. 679;
Swift & Co. v. United States, 196 U.5. 375,

-25 8.Ct. 276, 49 1L.Ed..518; United States v.

‘Patten, 226 1.8, 525, 33 S.Ct. 141, 57 L.Ed,
United Mine
‘Workers v. Coronado Coa! Co., 259 U.S.
344, 42 S.Ct, 570, 66 L.Ed. 975, 27 ALR.
762 Local

128
167 v. United States, 291 U.S.

_293 54 S.Ct. 396, 78 L.Ed. 804;" Stevens

Co, et al. v. Foster & Kleiser Co. et al, 311

"U.S. 255, 61 S.Ct. 210, 85 L.Ed. 173, decided

December 9, 1940, . As to the National

_Labor Relations Act, see National Labor
tion rooms from which a substantial part

Relations Board V. Fainblatt, supra, and
cases cited. :

The _means adopted by § 15(a) (2) for

the suppression of the production of the
condemned goods for interstate commerce

.is so related to the commerce and so affects
it a3 to be within the reach of the commerce

.power,
JU.8. 11, 59 S.Ct. 385, 83 L.Ed. 441, Con-

See Currin v. Wallace, supra, 306

gress, to attain its objective in the suppres-
sion of nationwide competition in interstate
commerce by goods produced under sub-

“standard labor conditions, has made no dis-

tinction as to the volume or amount of
shipments in the commerce or of produc-
tion for commerce by any particular shipper
or producer, It recogmized that in present

‘day industry, competition by a small part

may affect the whole and that the total
effect of the corhpetition of many small
producers may be great. See H. Rept. No.
2182, 75th Cong. 1st Sess., p. 7. The legis-

lation aimed at a whole embraces ali its
‘parts.

“Cf. National Labor Relations Board
v. Fainblatt, supra, 306 U.S. 606, 59 S.Ct.

‘671, 83 LEd 1014
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So far as Carter v. Carter Coal Co., 298
U.5, 238, 56 S.Ct. 855, 80 L.Ed. 1160, is in-
consistent with this conclusion, its doctrine
is limited in principle by the decisions under
the Sherman Act and the National Labor
Relations Act, which we have cited and
which we follow. See, also, Sunshine An-
thracite Coal Co. v. Adkins, 310 U.S. 381,
60 S.Ct. 907, 84 L.Ed. 1263; Currin v. Wal-
lace, supra; Mulford v. Smith, supra;
United States v. Rock Royal Co-Op.,, supra;
Clover Fork Coal Co. v. National Labor
Relations Board, 6 Cir,, 97 F.2d 331; Na-
tional Labor Relations Board v. Crowe Coal
Co,, 8 Cir,, 104 F.2d 633; National! Labor
Relations Board v. Good Coal Co., 6 Cir,,
110 F.2d 501,

[23,24] OQur conclusion is unaffected by
the Tenth Amendment which provides:
“The powers not delegated to the United
States by the Constntut:on, nor proh1b1ted
by it to the
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States, are reserved to the
States respectively, or to the people”. The
amendment states but a truism that all is
retained which has not been surrendered.
There is nothing in the history of its adop-
tion to suggest that it was more than de-
claratory of the relationship between the
national and state governments as it had
been established by the Constitution be-
fore the amendment or that its purpose was
‘other than to allay fears that the new
national government might seek to exercise
powers not granted, and that the states
might not be able to exercise fully their
reserved powers. See eg, II Elliot’s De-
bates, 123, 131; III id. 450, 464, 600; IV id.
140, 149; I Annals of Congress, 432, 761,
767-768+ Story, Commentaries on the Con-
stitution, secs. 1907, 1908.

[25] From the beginning and for many
years the amendment has been construed as
not depriving the national government of
authority to resort to all means for the ex-
ercise of a granted power which are ap-
propriate and plainly adapted to the per-
‘mitted end. Martin v. Hunter’s Lessee, 1
Wheat, 304, 324, 325, 4 L.Ed. 97; MecCul-
loch v. Maryland, supra, 4 Wheat, 405,
406, 4 L .Ed. 579; Gordon v. United States,
117 U.S. Appendix, 697, 705; Lottery Case,
supra; Northern Securities Co. v, United
States, supra, 193 U.S. 344, 345, 24 S.Ct. 459,
460, 48 L.Ed. 679; Everard’s Breweries v.
Day, supra, 265 U.5. 558, 44 5.Ct. 631, 68 L.

Ed. 1174; United States v. Sprague, 282 U.
S.716, 733, 51 S.Ct. 220, 222, 75 L.Ed. 640,
71 ALR. 1381; see United States v. The
Brigantine William, 28 Fed.Cas. 614, 622,
No. 16,700, Whatever doubts may have
arisen of the soundness of that conclusion
they have been put at rest by the decisions
under the Sherman Act and the National
Labor Relations Act which we have cited.
See, also, Ashwander v. Tennessee Valley
Authority, 297 U.8. 288, 330, 331, 56 S.Ct.
466, 475, 80 L.Ed. 688; Wright v. Union
Central Ins. Co., 304 U.S. 502, 516, 58 S.
Ct. 1025, 1033, 82 L.Ed. 1490.

[26] Validity of the requirement of
records of wages and hours. § 15(a) (5)
and § 11(c). These requirements are in-
cidental to those for the prescribed wages
and
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hours, and hence validity of the former
turns on validity of the latter. Since, as
‘we have held, Congress may require pro-
duction for interstate commerce to comn-
form to those conditions, it may require
the employer, as a means of enforcing the
valid law, to keep a record showing wheth-
er he has in fact complied with it. The re-
quirement for records even of the intra-
state transaction is an appropriate means to
the legitimate end. See Baltimore & Ohio
R, Co. v. Interstate Commerce Commission,
221 U.8, 612, 31 5.Ct. 621, 55 I.Ed. 878;
Interstate Commerce Commission v. Good-
rich Transit Co,, 224 U.S. 194, 32 5.Ct. 436,

56 L.Ed. 729; Chicago Board of Trade v.

Olsen, 262 U.S. 1, 42, 43 S.Ct. 470, 479, 67
L.Ed. 839.

[27,28] Validity of the wage and hour
provisions under the Fifth Amendment.
Both provisions are minimum wage require-
ments compelling the payment of a min-
imum standard wage with a prescribed in-
crecased wage for overtime of “not less
than one and one-half times the regular
rate” at which the worker is employed.
Since our decision in West Coast Hotel Co.
v. Parrish, 300 U.S. 379, 57 S.Ct. 578, 81 L.

_Ed. 703, 108 A.L.R. 1330, it is no longer open

to question that the fixing of a minimum
wage is within the legislative power and
that the bare fact of its exercise is not a
denial of due process under the Fifth more
than under the Fourteenth Amendment.
Nor is it any longer open to question that
it is within the legislative power to fix
maximum hours. Holden v. Hardy, 169
U.S. 366, 18 S.Ct. 383, 42 L.Ed. 780; Muller
v. Oregon, 208 U.S5. 412, 28 SCt 324,
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52 L.Ed. 351, 13 Ann.Cas.. 957; . Bunting
SV Oregon, infra; Baltimore &.Ohio R.
Co. v. Interstate . Commerce Commission,
supra.. Similarly the statute iz mot objec-
tionable because applied:alike to both men
-and women. -Cf. Bunting v. Qregon, 243
.8, 426, 37 8.Ct. 433, 61 L.Ed 830, Ann,
Cas. 1918A 1043 .

[29] The- Act is sufﬁmently deﬁmte to :

meet constitutional demands. :Oné who ein-
:'ploys persons, without conforming to the
prescribed wage and hour conditions, to
work on goods which he shlps or expects
to ship ‘across state
. _ 126

. lmes, is warned tha.t
+he may be subject to the criminal penalties
of the Act. No more is required. . Nash
‘w. United States, 229 U.S, 373, 377, 33 S.
Ct. 780 781, 57 L.Ed, 1232, :

We have cons:dered but find it unneces-
. sary to discuss other contentions.

_Reversed,

f
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1, Indictment and Information ¢=108
-To determine whether an’ indictment
charges an offense, the pleader’s designation
of & statute purporting to suppert the charge
is immaterial, .since the charge, though not
-sustained by _that statute, may come with-
“in the terms of snocther, just as other stat-
utes not referred to by the pleader may

draw_ the stmg of crirninality from the alle-.

' gatlons .

2. Monnpollas &=212(1)

‘Whether labor union actlvities consti-
‘tute a violatlon - of the Sherman Anti-Trust
Act ‘13 to. be determined only by reading,
. as a harmonizing text, the Sherman Act, the
Norris-LaGuardia Act, and the sectlon of the

. Clayton Act restricting injunctions in labor
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cases, - Sherman Anti-Trust Act § 1, as

- amended, 15 U.8,CA, § 1; Clayton Act, §

20, 29 U.8.C.A. § 52; Norris-LaGuardia Act,
§ 1-15, 20 U.S.C.A. §5 101-115.

3. Cotlrta €>262(4)

The section of the Clayton Act restrict-
Ing injunctions in labor ¢ases does not dif-
ferentiate between labor ,union conduct ‘di-
rected ngajnst an employer because of & con-
troversy arising in the relation between em-
ployer and employee, as such, and conduct
simllarly directed but ultimately due to strife
between unions competing for jobs. Clayton
Act, § 20, 20 U.S.C.A, § 62,

4, Monopolles @3I(l)

Where an indlctment for -violating the
Sherman Anti-Trust Act alleged that the
employer and its lessee s0ld thelr products
largely through interstate shipments and
that the employer and companies contracting
for comstruction wotk for the employer and
ity lessee depended on interstate cominerce

~for: thelr materials, and that defendants

called out members of a carpenters’ union,
competing with a machinists’ union for em-
ployment, on strike agalnst the emplpyer'
and construction companies, followed by at-
tempts to call sympathy strikes and by plck-
eting of the employer and its lessee, and a

‘request through ecircular letters, ete., that

union members and their friepds refrain
from buy!ing the employer's products, the acts
¢harged were lawful under the section of the
Clayton Act restricting injunctions in labor
cases, especially in the light of the Norris-
LaGuardia Act establishing that the allow-
able area of union activity is not to be re-
stricted to an immediate employer-employee
relation. Sherman Antl-Trust Aet, § 1, as

" amended, 15 U.S.C.A. § 1; Clayton Act, § 20, .

‘29 U.S.0.A. '§ 562; Norris-LaGuardia Act, $
13(b, ¢), 29 U 8.C.A. § 113(b, ©). '

‘5, Courts &=262(4)

The underlying aim of the Norris-La-
Guardia Act was to restore the broad pur-
pose which Congress thought it had formu-
lated in the sectlon of the Clayton Act re-
stricting injunctions in labor cases, but which
was frustrated, so Congress believed, by un-

. duly. restrictive judicial. construction, and in

thig light such section removes labor union

_activities enumerated therein and redefined

by the Norris-LaGuardia Act from the taint
of being violatlons of any law of the United
States, including the Sherman Anti-Trust
Act, Sherman Anti-Trust Act, § 1, as amend-





